Vendor Questions Regarding the Request for Proposals
To Provide Software and Hardware
for the Virtual Statehouse Project
For the Kansas Legislature
October 1, 2020

1. Would the legislature be open to an on premise solution for video conferencing?
a. Yes, an on-premise solution is acceptable.

2. Does the state desire to lease hardware, software, and support a specific term (i.e. 3 years)?  We need a more defined plan for leasing, as it’s available with our banking partners but not direct through AVI Systems.  We need to know what the lease covers.
a. Funding for this project is through the Coronavirus Relief Fund grant program.  We expect equipment to be purchased with a minimum of three year maintenance.  We apologize for the confusion regarding the leasing language.  This language is part of the RFP template and was overlooked.  

3. Is the defined installation time-period available from December 2nd, to the 27th?
a. Installation could begin earlier than December 2nd, if possible.

4. Is it possible to expedite the testing from the state to allow for more time?
a. We recognize this is an aggressive project schedule.  The state will work with the selected vendor to expedite the project schedule wherever possible.

5. Is it possible to get a full list of existing equipment, video conference solutions/hardware, and software solutions?
Requirement #24 – Do you have a detailed equipment list and schematics of currently installed AV equipment that will be retained and incorporated in to the new system.
Is the Statehouse currently on one videoconferencing platform? If so, which one and what kind of licensing is currently held?
a. The Legislature is currently using Zoom for video conferencing.  This project is for new systems and is not replacing existing hardware or software solutions.

6. For the space, can we get flow diagrams, floor plans, and reflected ceiling plans for the systems we would be implementing solutions with?  
Requirement #1- Do you have detailed architectural, electrical and furniture drawings for each of the 15 spaces? A line drawing, elevation diagram and information on the desired location of displays, what the structure holding the displays up are made of will be needed for accurate installation pricing. 
Are there architectural prints available for the rooms to discern size and layout?
a. Architectural drawings will be available to the selected vendor.  There are several files attached to help explain the committee room design:
i. Drawing of a committee room with identified locations for 3 cameras and 2 monitors
ii. Photos showing the member, staff, and public seating in a committee room, and existing data and power for cameras and monitors
iii. Spreadsheet detailing the number of member and constituent seats, audio system speakers for each committee room

7. Is a site visit available for our resources to come out and tour the facility and take pictures and notes?
a. A site survey will be conducted during the final system design.  The attached files and committee room photos identify the committee room layout and existing data and power for cameras and monitors.

8. Can you tell us how many parties are invited to this RFP, and who they are?
a. This RFP is open to all interested parties.

9. If recording is done on premise, is the storage hardware the responsibility of the vendor, or is that storage provided by the State Legislature?
a. We will consider proposals with both cloud storage and on-premise storage.  We would expect on-premise storage to be the responsibility of the Legislature.  

10. Is there a specific platform that you’re looking to use like International Roll Call, Slick etc.?
a. We will consider all platforms and solutions.

11. Is there staff that operates the camera switching and audio, or is it more automated in nature?
a. We expect the vendor to identify staffing requirements for the proposed solution.  Our preference is an automated solution but we understand the requirements of legislative proceedings may require staff to manually control equipment during some meetings.

12. What needs to be demonstrated in full prior to the implementation? Do all the audio visual and software solutions need to be demonstrated, or just solutions connected to the network?
a. Once the initial RFP responses are evaluated we will work with vendors to arrange demonstrations of specific modules or full systems.    

13. Is the staff open to touring other solutions?
a. Yes, we open to touring other solutions.

14. Are there any physical restrictions within the space that doesn’t allow for installation such as drilling holes, running wires, or other due to the existing furniture or furnishings? 
a. We frequently find restrictions due to existing design and architecture.
b. The Kansas State Capitol is an historic building.  Installation will be limited to existing locations, conduits, and wiring closets.  

15. When are the spaces available for implementation based upon the schedule?  Is there a detailed schedule per room available?
a. The detailed implementation schedule will be negotiated with the selected vendor.

16. Will the implementation be during normal business hours?
a. Implementation is expected be during normal business hours.  If it becomes necessary to work outside of normal business hours to meet the project schedule we will work the selected vendor to accommodate that.

17. In the RFP you mention gigabit fiber backbone. For the requirements we would recommend an isolated network to handle that capacity. Would this be the vendors responsibility to supply this?
a. The Legislature contracts with an Executive branch agency, Office of Information and Technology Services (OITS), for network backbone services.  OITS will provide an isolated network if necessary.  OITS will also be responsible for any new wiring needed for this project.

18. The RFP requests a physical copy. Due to the quick turnaround of the response and COVID operational nuances, would a fully digital response be accepted by email or file sharing site? If a physical copy is required, would a digital signature over wet ink be accepted? 
i. We prefer one physical copy but will accept a fully digital response.  A physical copy of the RFP response with a digital signature is acceptable.

19. Requirement #15 – Should this be a physical button(s) or an action on a touch panel?
a. This can be either a physical button, an action on a touch panel, or a button in the software.

20. Requirement #20 - Will power and necessary backing be provided by other for installation of large wall mounted monitors? 
a. Yes, wall mounted monitors were considered during the Capitol Renovation project.  Monitor locations have power and are structured to support large wall mounted monitors.


21. Requirement #21 – Will a pathway/conduit for low-voltage cabling be provide by other from AV equipment location to wall mounted camera locations?
a. Yes, conduits and CAT 6e cabling were installed for camera locations during the Capitol Renovation project.  

22. Can a copy of the Biamp and BSS system files be provided prior to installation for review of the existing system?  Are there technical prints available for the rooms in question?  If not, is there an existing equipment list?
a. Yes, the audio system files will be available to the selected vendor.  We are currently upgrading these systems and specific model numbers are not available.  Integration with the audio systems is an important requirement for this project.

23. Requirement #26 – Can you provide floor plans indicating wiring closets and data centers that will be accessible for AV equipment installation? Include existing and unused power that is available in each location. Include existing ventilation or cooling mechanisms in each location.
a. AV equipment will be rack mounted in existing wiring closets.  HVAC is controlled through the building systems.  There is adequate power and circuits for the new equipment. 

24. Requirement #28 –  How do you want to accomplish this? Will the administrators be in the room on a laptop or desktop? Or remote and operating from a computer on the network?
a. We expect the administrators to be located in a control room using a computer on the network.  We are, however, open to proposals for system administration.

25. Requirement #35 - The kill switch and suspended meetings. Assuming this means to cut a live feed at any time due to “Zoom bombing” or comments from the public. Are you wanting the functionality to end the live stream only, end the video conference, functionality to only belong to a host or co host? 
a. We expect the kill switch to end the live stream and the meeting.   This requirement is for a response to a security event during the meeting.
b. Suspending a meeting for an executive session would pause the live stream, allowing it to be restarted when the full meeting resumed.   Executive sessions are private and should only be accessed by the meeting participants.  The system should allow all participants to automatically rejoin the meeting when it resumes.

26. Requirement #23 says Cameras will be connected and managed over an IP network. Is this a hard requirement? IP based cameras output a different type of video stream than our encoders accept. Getting that format converted is typically a very expensive process. It’s really the only requirement we have for video streaming when it comes to AV, no IP based cameras.
a. The new system will be installed using existing cabling, conduit, and locations.  During the Capitol Renovation project CAT 6 cabling was installed to the camera locations.  The cable runs can extend over 200’ and it is likely the conduits do not have space to run additional cables.   OITS will be responsible for any new cabling that is installed for this project. 


27. Do the 13 teleconference stations already exist or are part of what is being asked for?  If you are interested in a submission around just web-video streaming we would love the opportunity to respond, but it sounds like you are only receiving complete bids, is that correct?
a. The room video conference systems (teleconference stations) do not exist and this is the main request of the RFP.
b. We will accept responses for specific components of the RFP.

28. What is the size of conferees in the meeting rooms and what size would the smaller breakout groups be?
a. Breakout groups are subsets of the full committee or chamber and are generally 2 – 15 members.  
b. The number of conferees is determined by the committee chair or chamber chair and can range from 1 to over 100 for a meeting.  

29. How many breakout groups of what size should be expected, and will they be holding concurrent meetings in the same room (needing two systems in the same room for instance)?
a. Breakout groups could meet concurrently.  Breakout groups can be 2 – 15 participants. The breakout groups are generally 1 group in addition to the main conference, but we would like to have the option to do more than 1 breakout group.    During chamber sessions the chamber meeting would be open for announcements or call to order by the chair.  Side meetings/conferences would be conducted with individual computers so two systems in a room would not be required.






Committee Room Drawing with current locations of power and data for camera and wall mounted monitors.
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View of Committee Staff table from the Committee Chair location
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Description automatically generated]View of Committee Member seating, Staff table, and Conferee podium
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Description automatically generated]View of public constituent seating.  Existing power and data for camera and wall mounted monitor are under the clock.















































Examples of existing power and data for camera and wall mounted monitors.  Shelves will be installed for the cameras.
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